Not approved until next meeting
 LIBERTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

December 10, 2019	Meeting Summary	7:00 p.m.

I.	Call to Order 

The Liberty Planning and Zoning Commission met on Tuesday, December 10, 2019, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 101 East Kansas Street. A quorum being present, Chairman Rosekrans called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

II.	Roll Call

Commission members in attendance were: Rick Boswell, Judy Dilts, Patricia Evans, Walt Holt, Amy Howard, Ken Personett, Tom Reinier, Dee Rosekrans and Ann Waterman.   Representing staff were Katherine Sharp, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Peterman, City Planner; and Ben McCabe, Assistant Director of Public Works.  4 members of the public were in attendance.

III.	 Approval of Minutes 

Chairman Rosekrans asked if there were any questions or comments related to the minutes from the September meeting.

Commissioner Holt moved to approve the regular session minutes from the September 10, 2019 meeting and Commissioner Boswell seconded the motion. The minutes were approved 7-0-2 (Dilts and Personett abstained due to absence). 

IV.	19-48SUP:  Special Use Permit for The Wellington, a senior living community of 153 units on 9.39 acres at S. Withers & Kent [Public Hearing]

Mr. Peterman presented the proposal as described in the staff report.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions of staff.  

Commissioner Personett asked about the route of the open channel along S. Withers.

Mr. McCabe stated that he believed that it comes from around the Price Chopper area, down along S. Withers and crosses under S. Withers and continues through the park.

Commissioner Personett asked how will it look after the property is developed.

Mr. McCabe stated that because it will be in a conservation easement, it should remain unchanged and in a natural state.

Commissioner Holt asked about parking and how the exception compares to other projects.

Mr. Peterman said that there was a lengthy analysis which was included in the exhibits that gave staff a level of comfort that the applicant had provided enough parking for their proposed use. 

Ms. Sharp said that this is different than other multi-family that we have approved recently in that it qualifies as a long-term care facility and elderly apartments (for 65 years of age and older) and per the Unified Development Code this type of Special Use permit for elderly apartments can justify the amount of parking needed for their particular use and are not required to meet the standards set forth for a non-elderly apartment. She said it was similar to the allowance for industrial properties to determine their own parking needs, and not have to meet the requirments set forth for other business uses. 

Commissioner Holt asked about the numbers and conclusions that the applicant has presented.

Ms. Sharp stated that they reference The Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Parking Generation Manual in their justification.  She said she would let the applicant address it further.

Commissioner Dilts asked if a traffic study was performed.

Mr. McCabe stated that there was a traffic study and it confirmed that this project will not generate enough traffic to warrant any road improvements.

Chairman Rosekrans asked if the entrance on S. Withers Rd needed any type of signage noting that it was right-in, right-out only.

Mr. McCabe said that the existing median would not allow any other turning movement, so no signage is necessary. But final level details such as signage would be reviewed more fully at final phase of development.
Chairman Rosekrans asked if the applicant would like to speak.

Scott Auman, Stark Wilson Duncan Architects, 315 Nichols Road, Suite 228, Kansas City, Missouri  64112, the applicant, stated that he represented O’Reilly Development, the applicant.  The developer has built this type of project many times all around the area.  They have integrated their experience from all of their other projects and from the ITE parking manual to propose the appropriate amount of parking necessary for their development.

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions for the applicant.

Commissioner Boswell asked the applicant how many staff people are expected at the property.

Mr. Auman stated that he anticipates there to be 49 full time and 10 part time staff, but they are not all there at once.  

Commissioner Dilts asked about the experience that this developer has with this type of project.

Mr. Auman stated that O’Reilly Development has a very strong background in this area and partners with a professional management company that will manage the operations of the facility.
 
Commissioner Dilts asked about the design of the memory care unit.

Mr. Auman described the operation and design of the area of memory care.

Commissioner Holt asked if there were income based restrictions.

Mr. Auman stated that the facility is a private pay market based facility.

Commissioner Holt asked if the assisted living or memory care units were restricted to the 65 or older requirement.

Mr. Auman stated that those were based on case by case basis.

Ms. Sharp stated that the Special Use Permit does not restrict the assisted and memory care units to 65 or older, assisted and memory care are considered long-term care facilities.

Commissioner Holt asked about the material proposed for the exterior of the building.  

Mr. Auman described the proposed exterior materials.

Commissioner Boswell asked about the different charts in the applicants parking justification from McCurdy Engineers.

Mr. Auman stated that the first chart details the City of Liberty standards for multifamily projects (no age restriction) and the second chart details the industry standard as proposed by the ITE parking manual for this type of use. He said that while the proposed parking is less than what is required for apartments, the proposed parking is nearly double that of what is recommended for this specific use as shown in the ITE manual. He feels that the proposed 137 spaces is what will work best for this facility based on O’Reilly Developments extensive experience.

Chairman Rosekrans opened the public hearing portion for this case. He asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak.

Mackenzie Mallon, 1054 Wellington Way, asked about the reason to have the 3 story portion on the south end of the site next to single family homes and also suggested a cross walk across S. Withers Rd. be added to the south end of the project.

Chairman Rosekrans asked if anyone else in the audience wished to speak seeing no one, he closed the public hearing.

Mr. Auman stated that the overhead power lines on the North end of the site prevented anything taller than one story on that portion of the site.

Mr. McCabe stated that staff discussed a location for the crosswalk. And that due to safety concerns pertaining to a mid-block crossing, it was determined that a cross walk should be located at Kent and S. Withers, on the north side of the project, because that is a four way stop currently and creates a safer pedestrian crossing location.

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions, seeing none he asked for a motion.

Action: Commissioner Waterman moved to approve the case as presented in the staff report.   Commissioner Evans seconded the motion.


Vote: Motion passed 9-0-0
Yes: Boswell, Dilts, Evans, Holt, Howard, Personett, Reinier, Rosekrans, and Waterman
No: None
Recusal: None

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Monday, December 16, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.

V.	19-47PP:  Preliminary Plat for The Wellington, a senior living community on 1 lot at S. Withers & Kent

Mr. Peterman presented the proposal as described in the staff report.  

[bookmark: _GoBack]Chairman Rosekrans asked the Commissioners if they had any questions of staff, seeing none he asked for a motion.

Action: Commissioner Holt moved to approve the case as presented.   Commissioner Dilts seconded the motion.

Vote: Motion passed 9-0-0
Yes:  Boswell, Dilts, Evans, Holt, Howard, Personett, Reinier, Rosekrans, and Waterman
No: None
Recusal: None

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Monday, December 16, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.


VI.	Public Comments
There was no public comment.

VII.	Other Business
a. Ms. Sharp updated the Commission on current development projects. 

VIII.	Future Meeting Schedule

The next regular session is scheduled for Tuesday, January 14, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 

IX.	Adjournment
Commissioner Reinier moved to adjourn, Commissioner Personett seconded. Chairman Rosekrans adjourned the meeting at   7:45pm.
	Page 4	
